- Buffkin, Karen

From: , Ojakian, Mark o
Sent: Wednesday, June 05, 2013 12:02 AM
To: Buffkin, Karen '
Subject: RE: revenue loss without additional fix

Nancy has negotiated.

From: Buffkin, Karen

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 $:28 PM
To: Ojakian, Mark

Subject: Fw: revenue loss without additional fix

Mark -
are we ok with this change? What have the negotiations with the tribe been?

Karen

From: Potamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 09:26 PM

To: Buffkin, Karen

Subject: FW: revenue loss without additional fix

From: Calandro, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:23 PM

To: Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Welzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael; Wysock, Robert; Perillo, Christopher
Subject: revenue loss without additional fix

Maureen, Ellen and Paul - The below language change is needed to avoid a revenue loss. Please let Anne or Jo know if it
can be included as soon as possible. Thanks, Al

Section 86 of HB 6704 specifies that a certain portion of “gross operating revenues” from Keno may be transferred 1o
the tribes. However, the Fiscal Note calculation was based on the transfer of “net operating revenues,” which would
exclude commissions and vendor costs that the Connecticut Lottery Corp will incur operating Keno. The difference could
he as much as $2.0 million in additional transfers on an annualized basis. )

Sec. 86. (NEW) (Effective from passage) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes,
the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the state of Connecticut, may enter into
separate agreements with the Mashantucket Peqiot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut
concerning the operation of keno by the Connecticut Lottery Corporation in the state of Connecticut. Any such
agreement shall provide that the state shall distribute to each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve and one half per
cent share of the [gross] net operating revenue raised by the state from keno. For the purposes of this section,
"[gross] net operating revenues" means the total sum wagered, less amounts paid out as prizes and the
operating costs related to keno, as determined by the Connecticut Lottery Corporation each quarter.




From: Calandro, Alan

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:51 PM

To: Murphy, Michael

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

We would need the language change also...

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:50 PM

To: Calandrg, Alan

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer

Al, can we propose this fix for the implementer?

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 4:20 PM
To: Murphy, Michael
Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

Here’s a summary- let me know what you think:

Christopher M. Wetzel
Associate Budget Analyst
Office of Fiscal Analysis

(860) 240-0234

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:37 PM

To: Wetzel, Christopher
Subject: FW: General Government Implementer

We should recommend the keno fix. Canyou write it up and | will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perillo, Christopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two dbcuments:.l) LCO 8731 {PDF file); 2} section by section cheat sheet (Word doc).

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the
fiscal impact is IN {(or NOT IN) HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.




Buffkin, Karen

From: Potamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June (04, 2013 9:51 PM

To: ‘Calandro, Alan'; Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo, Wetzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael, Wysock, Robert;
Perillo, Christopher; Barnes, Ben; Buffkin, Karen; Sullivan, Michael J; Casa, GianCarl; Fiore,
Thomas

Subject: RE: revenue loss without additional fix

OPM is fine with this language.

'From Calandro Alan rmalito Aian Calandro@cqa ct qov]
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:23 PM

To: Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Wetzel, Christapher; Murphy, Michael;, Wysock, Robert; Perlllo, Christopher
Subject: revenue loss without additional fix

Maureen, Ellen and Paul - The below language change is needed to avoid a revenue loss. Please let Anne or Jo know if it
can be included as soon as possible. Thanks, Al '

Section 86 of HB 6704 specifies that a certain portion of “gross operating revenues” from Keno may be transferred to
the tribes. However, the Fiscal Note calculation was based on the transfer of “net operating revenues,” which would
exclude commissions and vendor costs that the Connecticut Lottery Corp will incur operating Keno. The difference could
be as much as $2.0 million in additionat transfers on an annualized basis.

Sec. 86. (NEW) (Effective from pussage) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes,
the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the state of Connecticut, may enter into
separate agreements with the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut
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
~ Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:51 PM
To: Murphy, Michael
Cc: Wetzel, Christopher
Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

We would need the language change also...

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:50 PM

To: Calandro, Alan

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer




Al, can we propose this fix for the implementer?

From: Wetzel, Christopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 4:20 PM
To: Murphy, Michael ‘ -
Subject: RE: General Government Implementer I

Here's a summary- let me know what you think:

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

We should recommend the keno fix. Can you write it up and t will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perillo, Christopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two documents: 1) LCO 8731 (PDF file); 2) section by section cheat sheet (Word doc).

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the
fiscal impact is IN (or NOT IN} HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.



Buffkin, Karen

From: Wyman, Nancy

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:48 PM

To: Buffkin, Karen ‘
Subject: Re: revenue loss without additional fix

I'm in my office

From: Buffkin, Karen

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 09:39 PM . |
To: Wyman, Nancy
Subject: Fw: revenue loss without additional fix !

Need to touch base if you can?

From: Potamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 09:26 PM
To: Buffkin, Karen : , |
Subject: FW: revenue loss without additional fix . \ !

From: Calandro, Alan [ma1|t0 AEan Calandro@cqa ct.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:23 PM

To: Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Wetzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael; Wysock, Robert; Perillo, Christopher
Subject: revenue loss without additional fix

Maureen, Eilen and Paul - The below tanguage change is needed to avoid a revenue loss.” Please let Anne or Jo know if it
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
be as much as $2.0 million in additional transfers on an annualized basis.

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
agreement shall provide that the state shall distribute fo each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve and one half per
cent share of the [gross] net operating revenue raised by the state from keno. For the purposes of this section,
"[gross] net operating revenues” means the total sum wagered, less amounts paid out as prizes and the
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

‘Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:50 PM

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

Here’s a summary- let me know what you thinl:

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

We should recommend the keno fix. Can you write it up and 1 will send to chairs? Thanks.

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
fiscal impact is IN {or NOT IN) HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.




Buffkin, Karen

From: Potamianos, Paul
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:37 PM

To: . Sullivan, Michael J, Barnes, Ben; Fiore, Thomas; MESSNER, GREGORY; Buffkin, Karen;

Casa, GianCarl
Subject: FW: revenue loss without additional fix

From: Calandro, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.qov]
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

Section 86 of HB 6704 specifies that a certain portion of “gross cperating revenues” from Keno may be transferred to
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
cent share of the {gross] net operating revenue raised by the state from keno. For the purposes of this section,
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

. Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

We would need the language change also...

From: Murphy, Michae!

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

" Associate Budget Analyst
Office of Fiscal Analysis
(860) 240-0234

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:37 PM

To: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer

" We should recommend the keno fix. Can you write it up and | will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perillo, Christopher

Sent; Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two documents: 1) LCO 8731 {PDF file); 2) section by section cheat sheet (Word doc}.

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the
fiscal impact is IN {or NOT IN} HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.



Buffkin, Karen

From: Potamianos, Paul
- Sent: © Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:26 PM
To: Buffkin, Karen
Subject: _ FW: revenue loss without additional fix

From: Calandro, Alan [maitto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:23 PM

To: Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Wetzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael; Wysock, Robert Perillo, Chnstopher
Subject: revenue loss without additional fix

Maureen, Ellen and Paul - The below language change is needed to avoid a revenue loss. Please let Anne or Jo know if it
can be included as soon as possibie. Thanks, Al

Section 86 of HR 6704 specifies that a certain portion of “gross operating revenues” from Keno may be transferred to
the tribes. However, the Fiscal Note calculation was based on the transfer of “net operating revenues,” which would
exclude commissians and vendor costs that the Connecticut Lottery Corp will incur operating Keno. The. difference could
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

From Calandro, Alan

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

We should recommend the keno fix. Can you write it up and | will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perillo, Chiistopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two documents: 1) LCO 8731 (PDF file); 2} section by section cheat sheet {Word doc).

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the

fiscal impact is IN {or NOT IN) HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.
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AGENDA

‘ Special Meeting of the
Connpecticut Lottery Corporation
" Board of Directors

ol
Wednesday, December 5, 2012
at 1:34 p.m.

at
777 Brook Street
Rocky Hill, CT 06067

I Request for Approval of the September 20, 2012 Board Meeting Minutes

.  Executive Report:
s President’s Report {Ms. Noble)
¢ Review of Sales Performance {(Ms. Patterson)

. Committes Reports:
s Audit (Mr. Stauifer)
e Finance (Mr. Morgan}

o Review of Financizl Statements for the Quarter Ende:d September 30, 2012
« Persomnel (Mr. Mattison)

o Review of CLC s Affirmative Action Plan for FY "12
« Legisiative (Ms. Morton)
s Gemes & Marketing (M. Kaliko)

V. Executive Session:
o New Game and Marketing Initiatives -
& Review of Draft Classic Lotto Game Rules

o Attorney/Client Commumications Re:
o Walker Digital, LLC et al v. MUSL
o Online Gaming System Contract
o Draft Engagement: Financial Andifors
e Review of Draft Compensation Plans

V.. Old Business

VI New Business:

e Review and Possible Action Re Omhine Gaming System Contract
e Review and Possible Action Re: Classic Lotto Game Rules
e Review and Possible Action Re: Compensation for FY "13

VIL Election of Vice-Chairperson of the Board
" VIIL Schedule of Board Meetings for Calendar Year 2013 |
IX. Review of Committees for 2013

X. = Adjournment
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CONNECTICUT LOTTERY CORPORATION

DRAFT
Minutes of the Special Board Meeting

held on
Wednesday, December 5, 2012
at 1:30 p.m.

at the
Connecticut Lottery Corporation
777 Brook Street
Rocky Hill, Connecticut 06067

Board Members Present: Frank Farricker, Chairman of the Board; Gale Mattison, Vice Chairman
‘ of the Board; Robert Morgan; Margaret Morton; Natasha Pierre; Patrick
Birney; James Farrell and Michael Thompson (both of whom joined the

meeting by telephone). ‘

Staff Members Present: Anne M. Noble, President & CEQO; Diane Patterson; Chelsea Turner;
Lana Glovach; Michael Hunter; Paul Granato; and Helen Duffy.

Call to Order: ' Chairman Farricker called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

I.  Approval of Minutes:
On motion made by Ms. Morion, seconded by Mr. Mattison, and unanimously approved, it was:

“Resolved: That the Board hereby approves the September 20, 2012 Board meeting
minutes.”

1. Executive Report:

President’s Reportt: _
Ms. Noble thanked Board members for attending today’s meeting. She reviewed the meeting

agenda and updated the Board on various topics through a Power Point presentation. Her report
follows: ' ‘ :

o YTD sales are up $32 million over last year and close to $10 million ahead of budget.

¢ Ceneral Fund transfers are approximately $8 million ahead of last year and are ahead of budget.

e The Lottery’s holiday campaign is underway. As is customary, a responsible gaming
component is incorporated. This includes reaching out to educators and parents about the fact
that lottery tickets are not suitable gifts for children. Recently, the Lottery received an award

" for its 2012 holiday campaign.

e A Special Session will likely ocour sometime between December 17% and 20™ to address the
state’s budget shortfali.

o At the federal level, Senators Reid and Kyl have circulated a draft i-poker proposal. At
Chairman Farricker’s request, Ms. Noble then provided a brief overview of the proposal and
shared some of the lottery industry’s concerns.

o Legislative proposals are under consideration, and the Lottery’s Legislative & Public Affairs
Committee will meet early in 2013.



Connecticut Lottery Corporation
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Page 2

e Progress has been made with the proposed DCP regulations. However, some important aspects
of the regulations remain unresolved, including in the areas of partial ticket packs,
augmentation and licensing. Lottery management will keep the Audit Committee apprised of
developments.

e The Lottery recently hired Mr. Andrew Walter as its new Counsel. Mr. Walter worked at the
Judicial Branch and has experience in the lottery industry. The Lottery continues to recruit for
other key positions.

» Management continues to work on a compensation study, utilizing KardaslLarson as a
consultant, who timely turned in their initial project work in draft form for review and study by
the Personnel Committee. The Committee is assessing the data and findings. Management
expects the project work to be finalized in the spring.

o Management has negotiated a term sheet and presented it to the Audit Committee for approval
by this Board. As reported to the Audit Committee, the President stated that a contract
executed, consistent with these terms, is in the Lottery’s best interest. The terms preserve
competitive pricing and continue the use of a reliable gaming system, which is now tailored to
meet this organization’s business needs. Further discussion would take place in Executive
Session.

Sales Performance Report: :
Ms. Patterson discussed the latest drive to recruit new Lottery retailers, which has resulted in eighty
new retailers to the retailer network since July.

The holiday marketing campaign was presented. It will be supported by POS, radio, digital
billboard, and various other media. Strong emphasis was placed on the CLC’s responsible gaming
message that lottery is not a suitable gift for youth; the message was incorporaied into this year’s
holiday campaign, as well as in a separate marketing campaign dedicated to responsible gaming

awareness.

Ms. Patterson presented a sample of new instant tickets.

Using sales charts, Ms. Patterson provided an overview of Lottery revenues and sales trends for the
period ended November 30, 2012. Her report follows:

e All Games Sales reached $100 million in November, the second largest sales month in recent
years. Discussion took place concerning the revenue difference between October and
November (attributable, in part, to the large Powerball jackpot).

e (Connecticut Only Games were down slightly. However, numbers games were $2.3 million
ahead of budget. -

e Sales were robust in the multi-state games category. Powerball sales were $17.7 million ahead
of budget due to the large jackpot. Mega Millions sales were $4.5 million below budget; the
game's jackpot has been won seven times during this fiscal year, resulting in lower jackpots
and sales.. However; when combined, multi-state games sales were $13.5 million, or 22.8%
ahead of budget.

o Instant ticket sales were $8.2 million, or 3.2% ghead of budget.

o Combined sales of Play3 and Play4 showed some improvement and are $2.3 million, or 2.5%
ahead of budget. :

o Classic Lotto sales are $3.1 million, or 24.6% under budget. Low jackpots in the game and
cannibalization by the Powerball jackpot have impacted sales. ‘
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¢ Cash5 was down $400,000 compared to budget. The game was negatively impacted by the
Powerball jackpot in November,

¢ The Super Draw 5 drawing will be held on January 1, 2013. The Lottery will continue to
promote the game, which was also impacted by the Powerball jackpot.

- Sales in the Lucky for Life game are meeting projections. The Lottery is working with the
other member sfates to look for new and innovative promotional opportunities to enhance sales
of the game. Again, the game was slightly impacted by Powerball, but remains $300,000, or
2.2% ahead of budget. :

» Through November 30, 2012, transfers to the General Fund were $131 million, up $8.3 million,
or 6.8% over budget.

Discussion took place concerning promotional and target sales for the Super Draw game, the

“ benefit to Connecticut as a member of the Tucky for Life game, and sales of the $2 versus §1

i1l

Powerball ticket.
This concluded the Executive Report.

Committee Reports:

Audit:

In Mr. Stauffer’s absence, Mr. Mattison gave the Audit Committee report. He stated the
Commitice had met to review and discuss the online gaming system contract. Mr, Mattison noted
that further discussion of the contract would be held during today’s Executive Session.

Finance: _
Mr. Morgan reported that the Finance Committee met to review financial statements for the quarter
ended September 30, 2012. He then asked Mr. Granato to give the financial report, which follows:

e Fiscal year 2013 sales are on target to reach over $1 billion for the third consecutive year.

e Sales are up $12 million, or 4.8% compared to the same time the prior year.

» Prize expense was the driver for performance and has experienced variations.

e In FY 12, prize expense was 61.0%, which is slightly lower than normal. In FY 13, prize
expense was somewhat higher, at 61.9%. On a portfolio of sales in excess of one quarter
billion dollars, a .9% variance results in a $2.3 million dollar impact.

¢ Retailer commissions, online system fees and production expenses are all proportionate to
revenue.

¢ All other operating expenses are under budget, in part because of vacant positions throughout
the organization. '

e Asof December Sth, General Fund transfers were $131.1 million, compared to a $122.8 million
budget. The transfer will result in the Lottery being $8.3 million ahead of budget, and $10.9
million ahead of last year during the same period.

Personnel:

Mr. Mattison reported that the Personnel Committee had met to review the Lottery’s Affirmative
Action Plan for FY 12. He stated that the Plan was satisfactory and the remaming items for
discussion would be covered in today’s Executive Session.
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V.

Lemslative:
Because the Legislative & Public Affairs Committes meeting had been postponed, there was no
Legislative report.

Games & Marketing:
In Mr. Kaliko’s absence, Mr. Matiison gave the Games & Marketing repozt He stated that new
game and marketing initiatives would be discussed m today’s Executive Session.

Executive Session:
At 2:05 p.m., Chairman Farricker called for 2 motion to enter into Executive Session. On motion
made by Mr. Birney, seconded by Mr. Morgan, and unanimously approved, the Board moved mnto
Executive Session to discuss:
¢ New game and marketing initiatives
¢ Draft Classic Lotto Rules
o Attorney/Client Communications Re:
o Walker Digital, L1LC et al v. MUSL
o Opline gaming system contract
o Draft Engagement: Financial Auditors
e Review of Draft Compensatmn Plans

Ms. Noble, Ms. Patterson Ms. Giovach, Ms. Tumer, Mr, Hunter and Mr. Granato were mnvited to
jon Executive Session concemmg the first three portions of the Session.

Only Ms. Noble was invited to join Executive Session to discuss the draft compensation plans.

Mr. Birney left Executive Session at 2:15 for the portion regarding the online gaming system
contract. He returned to Exscutive Session at 2:20 prn.

The Board reconvened in regular session at 2:45 p.m. Mr. Famicker reported that no votes nor
actions were taken during Executive Session.

(O1d Busipess:
None.

New Business:
On motion made by Mr. Morgan, seconded by Mr. Farricker, the following resolution was made:

WHEREAS, Ken Saccente was selected and appointed by three concurreni Majomty
Leaders of the Connecticut House of Representatives to serve as a Board Member of the
Connecticut Lotery Corporaﬁon; and,

WHEREAS, Ken Saccente voluntarily served as a Board Member of the Connecticut
Lottery Corporation for nine years and was a member of the Legislative and Personnel
Committees; and,

WHEREAS. Ken Saccente’s insight and expertise of the legislative process helped to
positively shape Connecticut Lottery Corporation policies and procedures; and,
WHEREAS, Ken Saccente’s judgment znd discernment belped to guide and chalienge
the management team to continually strive for their best; and,
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WHEREAS, Ken Saccente’s knowledge and understanding of the lottery industry were
instrumental in helping the Connecticut Lottery Corporation achieve three recent years
of record returns; therefore let it be ‘ :
RESQOLVED, that the Connecticut Lottery Corporation’s Board of Directars, President
and Chief Executive Officer and staff recognize the years of service and countless
contributions of Ken Saccente; and let it further be A

RESOLVED, that the Connecticut Lottery Corporation’s Board of Directors, President
and Chief Executive Officer and staff wish Ken Saccente success and happiness in the
future.

This resolution passed upanimously.

Ms. Noble thanked Mr. Saccente for his dedication, guidance and willingness 1o serve on the
Connecticut Lottery’s Board of Directors.

On motion made by Mr. Mattison, seconded by Mr. Morgan, the following motion was made: l

“Resolved, that after due consideration -- mcluding review of a term sheet comtaining
sroposed amendments to the CLC’s existing on-line contract with Scientific Games,
including extension of the contract period beyond the time stated in that contract -- and
based upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors hereby

_ determines that the presented terms are valuable to the Corporation and, further, that the - &
proposed contract amendment, including the extension of the temm, without open or &
competitive bidding, is in the Corporation’s best interests and consistent with the i
Corporation’s statutory awthority and Purchasing Policy. 2

_ 3
Therefore, the Board of Directors: {a) approves such contract amendment and exiension ﬂg) :
as described in that term sheet; and (b) authorizes the President, on the Corporation’s ®
behalf, to complete the negotiations and execute a contract smendment consistent with
the term sheet.” g
This resolution passed. Mr. Birney abstained from the vote.
. . ' T
On motion made by Mr. Morgan, seconded by Mr. Mattison, the followng resolution was made: g
“Resolved. that after due consideration, and based upon the récommendation of the P
Games and Marketing Committee, the Board of Directors approves the “Lotte™ Official b
Game Rules, to be effective upon the Departmment of Consumer Protection’s approval 3
and the required newspaper publication of 2 notice of rules adoption.” 5‘:
. ‘ o @

This resolution passed unanimously.
On moticn made by Mr. Mattison, seconded by Mr. Morgan, the following resolution was made:

“Resolved. that after due consideration and based upon the recomsnendation of the
Personnel Committee, the Board of Directors: (a) approves a Management Incentive
Compensation program for FY 2013 comparable to the EY 2012 program but without
the cap, (b) adopts for FY 7013 the essential terms of the FY 2012 Management
Compensation program; and (¢} authorizes the President & CEQ to address any salary
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compression within the available budget and, prior to taking any action, to report to the
Personnel Committee in January on steps to remedy this issue.”

This resolution passed unanimously.

Election of Vice-Chairperson of the Board:
On motion made by Mr. Birney, seconded by Ms. Morton, the following resolution was made:

“Resolved, that the Board nominates Mr, Mattison as Vice-Chairman of the Connecticut Lottery
Corporation’s Board of Directors for one additional year.”

This resolution passed unanimously.

Next Scheduled Board Meeting Date:

Mr. Farricker referred the Board to the roster of 2013 Board meeting dates. - He asked that the
March 21, 2013 meeting be moved out to April 18, 2013. Additionally, Ms. Pietre requested that
Board meetings begin at 1:00 p.m. versus 1:30 p.m. All Board members present were in agreement
with the dates and the time of meetings. '

Review of Committees for 2013:

In light of Mr. Saccente’s resignation from the Board, Mr. Farricker stated that he planned to
reorganize the various Committees of the Board. He asked that Committee members notify him if
they wished to serve on other Committees. Membership of the various Board Committees will be
published and distributed in the near futare.

Adjournment: ‘
On motion made by Mr. Mattison, seconded by Mr. Morgan, and unanimously approved, the

meeting was adjourned at 2:57 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Chelsea Turner
Corporation Secretary/Connecticut Lottery Corp.

By: Helen Duffy
Secretary to Anne M. Noble
President & CEQ/Connecticut Lottery Corp.
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AGENDA

Connecticut Lottery Corporation
Board of Directers’ Meeting

to be held,o'n
Thursday, June 27, 2013
at 1:00 p.m.

at
777 Brook Street
Rotky Hill
Connecticut 06067

Request for Approval of Draft Minutes of the May 23, 2013 Board of Directors’ Meeting

Executive Report:
« President’s Report {Ms. Noble)
« Review of Sales Performance (Ms. Patterscn)

Committee Reports:
e Finance {Mr. Morgan)
o Reqguest for Approval of the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year ZOlnﬂ
. Personnel (Mr. Mattison] _
 Legislative and Games (Ms. Morton)

Executive Session:
« New Game !nitiatives: Keno ,
Performance Evaluations and Compensauon of Senior Management

e Attorney/Client Communi ications Re:
o Game Rules

o Strategy with Respect to Collective Bargaining

Old Business

New Business: '
= Keno
» Review and Possible Action Re:
» Review and Possible Action Re Game Rules: Lucky for Life
« Review and Possible Action Re: Use ot fthe term “P!ayshp by the CT Lottery

Compensation Plans and Management Compensation

Next Scheduled Board Meeting Date: Thursday/ September 26, 2013 at 1:.00 p.m.

Adjournment




Memorandam
To: Finance Committee Members:
Mr. Robert Morgan
Mr. Gale Mattison

Mr. Patrick Birney
Mr. Robert Dakers

ce: - Wir. Frank Farricker Chairman
Ms. Anne Noble, President & CEO

From: Paul Granato, CFO EQQ%

Re:- Summary of 2014 Budget Proposal

Date: June 07,2013

#% This proposed revision of the budget does not inchude assumptions for implementing
Keno. Subject to the Board's guidance, we suggest submitting a revised budget inclucing
Keno for your approval in the 1Q of FY14. This wili ensure that the Keno budget
assumptions are accurate. We are currently working on that revision.

Revenue Assyumplions . ‘ :
We project modest growth in the mnstant portfolio. This product line is heavily nfluenced by

external factors such as weather, COnSumer confidence, and unemplioyment. We saw mere -

volatility in this portfolio this year and are cautious about projecting ImCreases in this mature
_portfolio, especially in light of ongoing regulatory constraints.

Powerball will perform as well next year as it did this year and we expect a very modest
improvemernt in Mega Millions associated with the fall matrix change. '

Lotto apd Lucky will perform consistent with this year. We do not expect Lotto to drop any
further. Planned changes to the Lotto portfolio in FY 14 could be affected by Keno roliout and
will be reflected in the revised budget that includes Keno. Lucky will be refreshed m the fall to
keep sales steady.

The Daily pumbers games have outperformed sales expectations m FY13 due to extraordinary
prize expense. While we are projecting 2 slight decline in sales for next year as the impact of
high payouts flattens, we do project that the games will return to a higher profitabiity level,




FExpense Adssumplions
Since the last draft budget that you rev1ewed we have refined the following expense projections:

Prize expense is estimated at statistical payouts and based on the level of sales revenue for each
lottery game..

Advertising costs have been increased by $460,000 to reflect the revised cost for our advertising
firm as a result of the bid process.

Production costs of instant tickets are estimated to increase $288,000. Additional instant games,
including higher fees for licensed games are contemplated, offset by savings on lower lease costs
on instant ticket vending machines. Second chance drawing expense is budgeted to increase due
to the DCP's position that the Lottery cannot use internet only entries for its instant ticket second
chance drawings.

Headcount for managers has been dropped by two. Management compensation has been adjusted
for raises; raises for the bargaining units were included in the original draft.

Attendance at a professional development conference has been added to the travel/conference
budget.

Chronic GamBEer’s Fund increased $400,000 (to $2.3 million annually).




End of Session Legislation
Relating to the Lattery, Problem Gambling and Casinos

INDEX
L Sections of Budget Implementer Bill, HB 6704 {(now Public Act 13-
- 184), regarding furding for problem gambling, Keno & anficipated
gaming revenue.....p. 2 -

A: Fiscal note for section for Keno . . . .. p.5

IL. Sections of General Government Implementer Bill, HB 67 06,
regarding anticipated gaming revenue and funding for preblem
g¢ambling. . ... p. 6

A. Fiscal note for section on funding for problem gambling .....p.7




Sections of Budget Implementer Bill, HB 6704 (now Public Act 13-

184), regarding funding for problem gambling, Keﬂo & anticipated
Uammg revente

House Bill No. 6704
Public Act No. 13-184 |

ACT CONCERN[NG EXPEND;’TURES AND REVENUE FOR THE B[ENNIUM
ING JUNE 30, 20165. :

enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Assembly
ened:

1. (Effective July 1, 2013) The following sums are appropriated from the
ERAL FUND for the annual periods indicated for the purposes described. .

2013-2014 20142015

DEFPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH
AND ADDICTION SERVICES -

Compulsive Gamblers Program 300,000 300,000




sec. 84. Section 12-801 of the general statutes is repealed and the following is
ubstituted in lieu thereof {Cffective from passage): -

Asused in sechons 12-b63a and 12-800 to 12-818, inclusive, the following terms shall
1ave the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates another meaning:

1) "Board" or "board of directors" means the board of directors of the corporation;

2} "Corporation” means the Connecticut Lottery Corporation as created under section
L2-602; '

3) "Division” means the former Division of Special Revenue in the Department of
{evenue bervices;

4) "Lottery" means (A) the Connecticut state lottery conducted prior to the fransier
suthorized under section 12-808 by the Division of Special Revenue, (B) after such
ransfer, the Connecticut state lottery conducted by the corporation pursuant to sections
12-563a and 12-800 to 12-818, inclusive, [and] (C) the state lottery referred to int |
ubsection (a) of section 53-278g, and (D} keno; ‘

5) "Keno" means a lottery game in which twenty numbers are drawn from a field of
ighty numbers by a central computer system using an approved random number
renerator, a rabbit ear or wheel system device employing eichty numbered balls and
he player holding a playslip matching the number of balls required for a paiﬁcﬁlar
pot game is awarded a prize as indicated on the approved rate card; '

(5)1 {6) "Lottery fund" means a fund or funds established by, and under the
nanagement and control of, the corporation, into which all lottery revenues of the
orperation are deposited, from which all payments and expenses of the corporation are
aid and from which transfers to the General Fund are made pursuant to section 12-812;

‘&)1 (7) "Operating revenue” means total revenue received from lottery sales less all
ancelled sales and amounts paid as prizes but before payment or provision for
ayment of any other expenses; and

}) "Playslip" means a lottery ticket issued for purposes of playing keno.

ec. 35, Sﬁ“bdiv:{sion (4) of subsection (b) of section 12-806 of the general statutes is
:pealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof {Effective from passage):

1y To introduce new lottery games, modify existing lottery games, utilize existing and
ew techmologies, determine distribution channels for the sale of lottery Hickets,
troduce keno pursuant to signed agreements with the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe and
.2 Mohecan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut, in accordance with section 86 of this act




and, 1o the extent specifically authorized by regulations adopted by the Department of
Consumer Protection pursuant to chapter 54, introduce instant ticket vending machines,
Liocks and automated wagering systems or machines, with a1l such rights being subject
to regulatory oversight by the Department of Consumer Protection, except that the
corporation shall not offer any interactive on-line lottery games, including on-line video
lottery games for promotional purposes;

Sec. 86. (NEW) (Effective from passage) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6e of
the general statutes, the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of
the state of Connecticut, may enter info separate agreements with the Mashantucket
Peguot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut concerning the
operation of keno by the Comnecticut Lottery Corporation in the state of Connecticut.
Any such agreement shall provide that the state shall distribute to each tribe a sum not
to exceed twelve and one half per cent share of the gross operating revenue raised by
the state from keno. For the purposes of this section, "gross operating revenues' means
the total sum wagered, less amounts paid out as prizes.

Sec. 113. (Eﬁeéﬁve July 1, 2013} The appropriatioﬁs in section 1 of this act are supported
- by the GENERAL FUND revenue estimates as follows:

2013 -2014 2014 - 2015
OTHER REVENUE , . '
‘ ' Transfer Special Revenue 214,300,000 338,800,000
Indian Gaming Payments 285,300,000 280,400,000




A. FISCAL NOTE to go with corresponding Keno language above:

scfions 84 - 86 authorize the Connecticut Lottery Corporation (CLC) to operate Keno.
ssed on data from other states that operate Keno, this is anticipated to result in a GF
venue gain of up to $3. 8 million in FY 14 and up to $27 million in FY 15 and annually
ereafter. The FY 14 revenue gain is lower due to an anticipated timing delay and CL.C
art-up costs. In accordance with section 86, the Secretary of the Office of Policy and
lanagément may enter into agreements with the Mashantacket Pequot Tribe and the
[ohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut to distribute to each Tribe up to 12. 5% of the
‘oS State operating revenue from Keno. These potential distributions reduce the
sfimated state revenue gain over the 2014 - 2015 Biennium to $3. 8 million in FY 14 and
37 million in FY 15. It is unclear what impact, if any, the operation of Keno by CL.C
iy have on the approximately $280 - 5285 million in casino gaming payments received
¢ the state annually. '

General Fund Revenue Impact (in millions)

Bl Description of Change | Fvies | FYI5S
1 Section @ ' ‘ '
| 84,85 & 86 [Establish Keno | [ a8l 270




th. Sections of General Government Implementer Bill, HB 6706,
regarding anticipated gaming revenue and funding for problemn
gambling.

‘{ “I‘? Qb Cﬂ‘?’\\{_cn.

Geﬁeral Assembly Bill No 6706
January Session, 2013 £ CO No. 8812
*08812 *
Referred to Committee on No Committee
Introduced by:

REP. SHARKEY, 88 Dist.

SEN. WILLIAMS, 29th Dist.

AN ACT IMPLEMENTING PROVISIONS OF THE STATE BUDGET FOR THE
BIENNIUM ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 CONCERNING GENERAL GOVERNMENT.

Sec. 112. Section 501 of house bill 6704 of the current session is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2013):

The appropriations in section 1 of [house bill 6704 of the current session] this act are
supported by the GENERAL FUND revenue estimates as follows:

T883  OTHER REVENUE
T884 Transfer Special Revenue 314,300,000 338,800,000
1885 Indian Gaming Payments _ 285,300,000 280,400,000

(Also deletes the $300,000 from HB 6704 from the General Fund to DMHAS’s Problem Gamblers
Rehabilitation account and substitutes this with a $400,000 from the CT Lottery Cbrporation.
See language and corresponding bilf analysis below.)




Sec. 133. Section 12-818 of the general statutes is repealed and the following is
substituted n lieu thereof (Effective July 1, 2013):

For each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010, and June 30, 2011, the Cornecticut
_ Lottery Corporation shall transfer one million nine hundred thousand dollars of the
revenue received from the sale of lottery tickets to the chrenic gamblers treatment
rehabilitarion account created pursuant to section 17a-713. For the fiscal [year ending
June 30, 2012, and each fiscal year thereafter] years ending [une 30,2012, to June 30,
2013, inclusive, the Connecticut Lottery Corporation shall transfer one million nine
hundred thousand dellars of the revenue received from the sale of lottery tickets to the
chrenic gamblers treatment rehabilitation a_ccou_nf created pursﬁanf to section 17a-713.
Por the fiscal vear ending Tune 30, 2014, and each fiscal year thereafter, the Connecticut
Lottery Corporation shall iransfer two million three hundred thousand dollars of the
revenue received from the sale of lottery tickets to the chronic gamblers treatment
rehabilitation account created pursuant o section 17a-713.

A. FISCAL NOTE to go with corresponding problem gémblers funding language
above: ' -

§ 133 — CONNECTICUT LOTTERY CORPORATION {CLC) TRANSFER OF MONEY _
TO CHRONIC GAMBLING TREATMENT ‘

e Transfers $ 2. 3 million of the revenue received from lottery ticket sales to the chromic
gamblers treatment rehabilitation account, in FY 14 anid each fiscal year thereafter.
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This joint memorandum of understanding is entered into by
and between the State of Connecticut [the *State”] and the
Mashantucket Pequot Tribe {the "Tribe™], this [ﬂﬁ day of
January, 1993, to set forth certain matters regarding
implementation of the final Mashantucket Pequot Gaming

Procedures, 56 Fed.Reg., 24996 (May 31, 199%1) [the ’

"procedures.*] All terms used herein which are defined in the

Procedures shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the
Procedures.

1. In full settlement and satisfaction of certain
controversies which have arisen hetween tha parties heresto
concerning the effect of the Procedures on the operation of
électronic lottery devices aﬂd 6thar video facsimiles (as
defined in the Procedures,) the State and the Tribe agree
that, subject to all of the terms and conditions herein, the
moratoriumrimposgé by section 15{(as) of the Procedures on the
operation by the Tribe of video facsimile games shall be
suspended and, so long as the Tribe complies with the terms
and conditlong of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Tribe
may operate video facsimiles ("video facsimiles®)} as defined
| in section 2{cc) of-the Procedures, subject to the

~ requirenents of section 7(c¢) of the Procedures and the

Technical Standards for Video Facsimile Games as set forth in

section 31 of Appendix A of the Procedures. The Tribe agrees

v

-




thﬁt, so long as no change in State law is_enacted to permit
the operation of video facsimiles by any other person and no
other person within the state lawfully operates video
faésimiles. the Tribe will contribute to the State a sum [the
vcontribution"] equal to twenty-five per cent (25%) of gross
operating revenues of such games operated by the Tribe. For
.purposes of this paragraph, gross operating revenues shall be
defined to mean the total sum wagered less amounts paid out as
prizes. The Contribution shall be payable on or before the
fifteenth day.of each month in an amount equsl to: (i)
twenty-five per cént {25%) of the grdss cperating revenues of
the Tribe From the operation of videc facsimiles during the
portion of the fiscal year of the State concluding on the last 4
day of the preceding calendar month, 6:, on July 13th of each
vyear, twenty-five per cent (25%) of the gross operating

revenues of the Tribe from the operation of video facsimiles 4
during the preceding fiscal year of the State, 1eés (il) the
cumulative Contribution paid by the Tribe prior to such date
with respect to the operation of video facsimiles during the
applicable fiscal year of the State, including any Minimum

~ Contribution paid by the Triba pursuant to paragraph (2)
below. The Tribe shall provide the Stste with detailed
reporting of the‘grcss operating revenues of video facsimile
devices and the determination of the Contribution hereunder
which shall be subject to audit by the State in accordancs
with the provisions of the Procedures. Upon any fallure by 4

the Tribe to satisfy its obligations to the State hereunder,
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(b) Solely for the fiscal year of the State commencing

July 1, 1993 and concluding on June 30, 19%4, the Minimum

Contribution with respect to the operation of video facsimiles

during said fiscal year shall be the greater of twenty-five
per cent (25%) of gross.operetinq revenués or One Hundrad
Million Dollars ($100,000,000.00) (the “Minimum Contribution®
for fiscal year 1994.) The Minimum Contribution shall be
payable as follows: the cumulative Contribution of the Tribe
to the State hereunder with respect to the operation of video

facsimiles during the fiscal year of the State ending June 30,

1994 shall be at least Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) as

of Septewbar 15, 1993; at least Twenty Million Dollarxs
($20,000,000.00) as of October 15, 1993; at least Thirty
Million Dollars (#$30,000,000.00) as of November 15, 1593; at
least Forty Million Dollars ($40,000,000.00) as of December
15, 1993; at least Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00) as
of January 15, 1994; at least Sixtf Million Dollars
{$60,000,000.00) as of February 15, 1994: at least Seventy
Million Dollars (§70,000,000.00) as of March 15§, 1994} at

. least Eighty Million Dollars ($80,000,000.00) as of April 15,

1994; at leasst Ninety Million Dollars (£90,000,000.00) as of
May 15, 1994; and at lesst One Hundred Million Dollars

(c} Bolely for each fiscal year of the State commencing
on or after July 1, 19%4, the Minimum Contribution with
reaspect to the operation of video facsimiles during each such

fiscal year shall be the legger of: (i) thirty per cent (30%)

|
|
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this Memorandum of Agreement shall cease to be of any force or
effect and the moratoriun establishsd pursuant to section 15(a)
of the Procedures shall without any requirement for further

L

action by elther party be in full force and effect in accordance
with its terms. 4

2. In order to enable the sState to forecast revenues for
purposes of planning lts budgetary affairs,.the Triba agrees tha
there shall be a minimum contribution (the “Minimum
Contribution"} payable in lieu of the amount caiculatad in
‘accordance with paragraph (1) abkove, whenever such Minimum
contribution is greater than the amount otherwise payable in
accordance with paragraph (1) above, as follows:

(a) Solely for the peried commencing with the execution of
the Memorandum of Undarstanding_and concluding on June 30, 1993,4
the Minimum Contribution with respect to the operation of video
facsimiles during said fiscal year shall be the greater of
twenty-five per cent (25%) of gross operating revenues or Thirty J
Million Dollars ($30,000,000.00) (the "Minimum Contribution" for
- fiscal year 19923.) The Minimum Contribution shall be payable as
follows: the cumulative Contribution of the Tribe to the State
hereunder with respect to the operation of video facsimiles
during the fiscal year of tha State ending June 30, 1993 shall be
at least Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) as of April 1s,
1993; at least Twenty Million Dollars {($20,000,000.00) aslof Hay‘

15, 1%93; and at least Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000.00)

as pf June 15, 1993.

")

B
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of gross opersting revenues from video facsimiles during such
figeal year, or {(ii) the g;gﬁig;‘of twenty~five per cent {25%)
of gross operating revenues from video facsimiles during such
fiscal year or One Hundred Million Deollars ($100,000,000.00).
The Minimum Contribution shall be payable as follows: the
cumulative Contribution of the Tribe to the Btate hersunder
with respect to the operation of video facsimiles during each
guch fiscal year of the State shall be Ten Million Dollars
($10,000,000.00) 85 of September 15th of each such fiscal

year, but not mors than thirty per cent (30%) of gross

oparating revanues from video facsimiles from July lst of such

fiscal year through August 3lst of such fiscal year; Twenty
Million Dollars ($20,000,000.00) as of October 15th of each
such fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of
grogs oéerating revenues from video facsimliles from July lst
of such fiscai year through September 30th of such fiscal
vear; Thirty Million Dollars {$30,000,000;00) as of November
15th ¢f each such fiscal year, but not hnre than thirty per
cent (30%) of gross operating revenues from video facéimiles
from Julf lst of such fiscal year through October 31lst of such
fiscal year; Forty Million Dollars ($40,000,000.00) as of '
December 15th of each such fiscal year, but not more than
thirty per cent (30%) of gross cperating ravenues from video
facsimiles from July lst of such fiscal yeer through November
30th of such fiscal year; Fifty Million Dollsars
($50,000.000;00)ras of January iSth of each such fiscal year,

but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating

[

{
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revenues from video facsimiles from July lst of such fiscal
yaar thrbuéh December 31st of such fiscal year; Sixty Milliocn
| Dollars ($60,000,000.00) as of February 15th of each such
fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent {(30%) of gross
operating revenues from video facsimiles from July 1st of such
fiscal year through January 31lst of such fiécal yeér;‘Seventy
Million Dollars ($70,000,000.00) as of March 15th df gach such
fiseal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of‘gross
operating revenues from video faczimiles from Juiy 1st of such
fiscal year through February 28th of such fiscal year; Eighty
Million Dollars (§$80,000,000.00) as of April 15th of each such
fiscal year, but not more than thirty'per cent (30%) of gross
operating revanues frbm video facgimiles from July lst of such
fiscal year through March 31st of such fiscal year; Ninety
Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00) as of May 15th of each such
fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross
operating revenues from video facsimiles from July lst of such
figpcal year through April 30th of such fiscal year; and One
Hundred Million Pollars ($100,000,000.00) as of July 15th
following the close of each such fiscal year, but not more
than thirfy per cent {30%) of gross operating reveﬁues from
video facsimiles through June 30th of such fiscal yesr.

3. It is understood and agreed by the parties.that this
agreement constitutes an accommedation by both the State and
the Tribe in order to satisfy their respective interéSts and
to resolve the matters addressed by section 15(a) of the

Procaedures in an orderly and non-adversarial manner, and does

~Gom

g6 .
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not constitute an admission or concegsion by either the State
or the Tribe as to any legal or Eactual gquestion which might
otherwise arise pursuant to sectlion 15(a) of the Procedures.
The Tribe agrees that so long as no change in State law is
anacted to permit the operation of video facsgimiles by any
"other person and no other person within the State lawfully
operates video facsimile games, tha Tribe shall not assert the i
right to operate such devices except in accordance with this é
Memorandum of Understanding., In the event that any change in

State law.is enacted to permit the operation of video

facsimiles by any ther person or any other parson within the

'sfata lawfully operates videe fagsimile games, the Tribe shall

not be bound by the provislons of this Memorandum of A
Understanding so long as it does not claim any right to

eperate video facsimile games by virtue of this Memorandum of
Understanding, but the Tribe may thereupon assert any rights

which it may otherwise have under the Procedures; provided,
~however, thal in guch event neither party shall be bound by

any of the provisions heceof not shall either party be barred

from takihg any position incensistent with this Memorandum of
Understanding. Nothing contained in this Memorandum of
Understanding shall be utilized under any circumstances as

evidence by either the State or the Tribe as to the intent of

the Procedures or the effect of any provision of the
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Paragraph 2{b} of the Joint mamorandum of understanding dated
ag of January 13, 1953 betwaen the State of Conneccicut apnd the

Mashantucket Paguot Tribes ig heraby emended as follows:

i, In lines five und gix of sald paragraph 2(b), the worda *One
Hundred Million Dellars (§100,000,000.00)" ara struck and tha words
"opme Ruyndred Thirteen Mlllion Dollaxs ($113,000,000.00)" are

ingereed in placs thexsol,

4, In linss twenty-two and twanty~three of 8pid parsgraph 2(k},
tha words "One Hundred M{lllon Dmilers {S100,000,000.480)" aras
strvok and the werdd "Ons Hundred Thirteen Milllon Dellars
(§113,000,000.00}" are ingexted in place tharaof, ' :

ED: April 30, 1883 . _ |
0F CONNHCTIOUT, Byt MAGHANTUCKET ¥EQUOT TRIBE, By




' SECOND AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The _joim memorandum of understanding dated as of January 13. 1993 between
the State of Connecticut and the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe as previously amended b}"
the First Amendment to the Memorandum of Undcrsténding {as so amehded, the
“Menﬁorandum") is hereby further amended as follows:

WHEREAS, the Mohegan Tribe is now federally recognized and the State may
be required to negdtiate a ganiing compéct with the Mohegan Tribe which could reiievé
the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe of its obligation to contribute to the State and lead to
renewed litigation between the parties hereto regarding the effect of the moratorium set
forth in section 15(a) of the Mashantucket Pequot Gaming Procedure-s; and

WHEREAS, ambiguities in the Memorandum may lead to renewed litigation
between the parties in the event that state lcgislétion is enacted which seeks to circumvent
the intent .of‘ the Memorandum by authorizing casinos without initially authorizing the
operation of video facsimiles in such casines; and

WHER_EAS, the parties desire 1o avoid renewed litigation and to amicably resojve
the existing uncertainties. in a manner cons;istent with the brigmal_ intent of the
Memorandum, and the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe is prepared to maintain its obligation
to contribute to the State so long as the Mohegan Tribe enters into a similar arrangement:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it agreed as follows:

1. The Memorandum is hereby further'ameuded by striking the second sentencé of
paragraph (1) and inserting in place thereof the following:

"The Tribe agrees that. so fong as no change in State law is enacted to permit the

operation of video facsimiles or other commercial casino games by any other person and



no other person within the State lawfully operates video facsimiles or other commercial
casino garﬁes. the Tribe will coniribute to the State a sum [the "Comribution"} equal o
twenty-five per cent (25 %) of gross operating fc&renues of video facsimile games operated
by the Tribe." |

2, The Memorandum is hereby furrhef amended by striking Paragraph (3) and
inserting in 'placé thereof the following:

"3 It is understood and agreed bjf the parties that this agreement constitutes
an accommodation by both the State and the Tribe in érder to satisfy their respective
interests and to resolve the matters addressed by section 15(a) of the Procedures in an
orderly and non-adversarial manner, and does not constitute an admission or conccésion
by either the State or the Tribe as to any legal or facmal questions which might otherwise
arise pursuant to section 15{a} of the Procedures. The Tribe agrees that so long as no
change in State law is enacted to permit the operation of video facsimiles or other
commercial casino games by aﬁy o;her person and mo other persen within the State
lawft.ﬁly, operates video facsimile games or other commercial casino games.' the Tfibc
shall nor assert .the right to operate video facsimile ga}ncs c;geept in accordance with this
Memorandum of Understanding. In the évcnt that any change in State law is enacted to

“permit the operation of video facsimiles or other commercial césino gmﬁes bSr any other .
person or any other person within the State lawfully operates video facsimile games or
‘other commercial casino games, the Tribe shail not be bound by the provisions of this
Memorandum of Understanding so long as it does not claim any right to operate video

facsimile games by virtue of this Memorandum of Understanding, but the Tribe may

iy



thereupon assert any rights which it may otherwise have under thf; Procedures: proviéed-
however, that in such event neither party shall be bound by any of the‘ provisions‘hereof
por shall either party be barred from taking any position inconsistent with this
Memorandum of Understanding; and further provided, that in the event that the Mohegan
Tribe lawﬁlllif operates video facsimile games or other commercial casino- games under

the provisions of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, the Tribe shall not thereby be

relieved of its obligations hereunder but shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph (4)

hereof, continue to be bound by the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding"‘

50 long as the Mohegan Tribe makes a contribution to the State with respect to its
operation of video facsimile games which is at least equivalent to that rgquired ;‘mrsuam
to the Memorandum of Un&crstanding of even date entered into between the Mohegan
Tribe and the State as appended hereto as an Exhibit. Nothing contained in this
Memorandum of Understanding shail be utilized under any circumnstance as evidence by
cither the State or the Tribe as to the intent of the Pfoceclures or the effect of anv
provision the Procedures or of any State or Federal law or regulation.”

3. The Mémorancium is hereby further amended by inseﬁing after para'graph'ﬁ) of
the following new paragraph:

"4,  Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (2) hercof and subject to the
provisions of paragrapﬁ (3) hereof, solely for each fiscal year of the State commencing
on or after July 1, 1995, during which the Mohegan Tribe operates video tﬁcsi.miles ar
other commercial casiﬁo games for any portion of such year and makes ‘the contribution

required pursuant to paragraph (3) hereof, the Minimum Contribution with respect w the



operation of video facsimiles during each such fiscal vear shall be the lesser of: (i} thirty

per cent {(30%) of groés operating revenues from video facsimiles during such fiscal year,
or (ii) the g@gg of twenty-five per cent {25%) of gross oﬁerating revenues from video
facsimiles during such fiscal year of Eighry Million Dollars ($80,000.000.00). The
Minimum Contribution shall be payable as follows: the cumulative Contribution of the
Tribe to the State herf;undcr with réspcc:t to the operation of video facsimiles during each
such fiscal year of thc_State shall be Eight Million Dollars ($8,000,000.00) as of
September 15th of each such fiscal year, but nat more than thirty(per cent .(30%) of gross -
operating revenues from video facsimiles from Tuly lIst of such fiscal year through
August 31st of such fiscal faar; Sixteen Million Dollars (Slﬁ,OOQ.OO0.00) as of October
15th of each such fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating
revenues from video facsimiles from July 1st of such fiscal year through September 30th
of such fiscal year; Twenty-Four Million Dollars (524,000,000:00) as of November 15th
of each such fiscal Srcar, but not more than thirty per -ccm (30%) of gross operating
revepues frpm video facsimiles from July Ist of such fiscal year through October 31st
of such fiscal y'ear; Thirty-Two Miﬂion Dollars (S3i,000,660.00) as of December 15th
of each such fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating
revenues from video facsimiles from July 1st of such fiscal year through November 30th
orf such fiscal year; Forty Million Dollars (340,000,000.00) as of ianuary 15th of each’
such fiscal vear, bui not more than thirty (30%) of gross operating revenues from video
facsirﬁiies from July 1st of such fiscal year through December 31st of such fiscal year:

Forty-Eight Million Dollars [$48,000.000.00) as of February 15th of each such fiscal

4
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vear. byt 1ot more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating revenues from video

facsimiles from July 1st of such fiscal year through .January 31st of such fiscal year;
Fifty-Six Million Dollars ($56.000,000.00) as of March 15th qf each such fiscal vear,
but.not more than thirty per cenf (30%) of gross operating revenues from video
facsimiles from July 1st of such fiscal year through February 28th of such fiscal year;
Sixty-Four Million Dollars (§64,000,000.00) as of April 15th of each such fiscal year,
but pot more t‘nan thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating revemues from video

facsimiles from July 1st of such fiscal year through March 31st of such fiscal year;

: Sevenﬁy—Two Million Doliars ($72,000,000.00) as of May 15th of each such fiscal year,

but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of grossl operating revenues from video
facsimiles from July 1st of ‘such fiscal year through April 30th of such fiscal year; and
Eighty Mﬂlion Dollars ($80,000,000.00) as of July 15th following the close of each such
fiscal year, but not more than thirty per cent (30%) of gross operating revenues from
video facsimiles through June BOt.h‘ of such fiscal year. "

DA.TE\ : Reew. 25 AT

MASHANTUCKET PEQUOT TRIBE

ST

BY .
Lowell P. Weicker, Goveglor




Sublivan, Michael J

From: Sullivan, Michael J

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:0% PM

To: : 'Calandro, Alan'

Ce: Barnes, Ben; Potamianos, Paul: Fiore, Thomas MESSNER, GREGORY:; Buffkin, Karen
Subject: _ keno ianguage

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6c of the general statutes, the Secretary of the
Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut, may enter into separate
agreements with the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut
concerning the operahon of keno by the State Lottery Corporation in the State of Connecticut. Any
such agreement shall provide that the State shall distribute to each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve
and a half percent (12.5%) share of the gross operating revenue raised by the State of Connecticut from
keno. For the purposes of this paragraph, gross operating revenues shall be defined to mean the total
sum wagered less amounts paid out as prizes.

Section 2. Amend subsection (b)(4 ) of Section 12-806 as follows:

(4) To introduce new lottery games, modify exisﬁng lottery games, utilize existing and new
technologjes, determine distribution channels for the sale of lottery tickets, INTRODUCE
KENO PURSUANT TO SIGNED AGREEMENTS WITH THE MASHANTUCKET PEQUOT
TRIBE AND THE MOHEGAN TRIBE OF INDIANS OF CONNECTICUT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 1 OF THIS ACT and, to the extent specifically authorized-by regulations
adopted by the Department of Consumer Protection pursuant to chapter 54, introduce instant
ticket vending machines, kiosks and automated wagering systems or machines, with all such
rights being subject to regulatory oversight by the Department of Consumer Protection, except
that the corporation shall not offer any interactive on-line lottery games, including on-line
video lottery games for promotional purposes; ' -

Michael Sultivan

Undersecretary for Legal Affdirs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860) 418-6298

Fax: {860) 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Lepal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. X you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at {260) 418-6298. Thank you




Sullivan, Michael J

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Calandro, Alan [Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]
Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:19 PM

Suliivan, Michael J

Re: keno language

Got it - shared it with the revenue guys

On May 30, 2013, at 8:08 PM, "Sullivan, Michael J* <Michael.).Sullivan@ct.gov> wrote:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes, the
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut,
may enter into separate agreements with the | et Pequot Tribe and the
Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut concerning the operation of keno by the State
Lottery Corporation in the State of Connecticut. Any such agreement shall provide that
the State shall distribute to each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve and a half percent
(12:5%} share of the gross operating revenue raised by the State of Connecticut from
keno. For the purposes of this paragraph, gross operating revenues shall be defined to
mean the total sum wagered less amounts paid out as prizes.

Section 2. Amend subsection (b)(4) of Section 12-806 as follows:

4) To introduce new lottery games, modify existing lottery games, utilize
existing and new technologies, determine distribution channels for the sale of
lottery tickets, INTRODUCE KENO PURSUANT TO SIGNED AGREEMENTS
WITH THE MASHANTUCKET PEQUOT TRIBE AND THE MOHEGAN TRIBE
OF INDIANS OF CONNECTICUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 1 OF
THIS ACT and, to the extent specifically authorized by regulations adopted by
the Department of Consumer Protection pursuant to chapter 54, introduce
instant ticket vending machines, kiosks and automated wagering systems or
machines, with all such rights being subject to regulatory oversight by the
Department of Consumer Protection, except that the corporation shall not offer
any interactive on-line lottery games, including on-line video lottery games for
promeotional purposes;

Michael Sullivan

Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860} 418-6298

Fax: (860} 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov




Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, fegally privileged, or otherwise exempt
fror disciosure. This information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this
transmission, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in refiance on the contents
of this communication is strictly probibited. Hf you have received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and
attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail o the sender or by calling me at (860] 418-6298. Thank you



Suilivan, Michael J

From: Sulitvan, Michael J

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:24 PM

To: ‘Shapiro, Larry'; 'Carroll, Anne Brennan'
Ce: _ Potamianos, Paul; Fiore, Thomas
Subject: FW: keno language '

fyi

Michael Sullivan

Undersecretary for Legat Affairs
Office of Palicy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860) 418-6298

Fax: (860} 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the Individuzl named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at {860} 418-6298. Thank you

From: Calandro, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov}
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:19 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael J

Subject: Re: keno language

Got it - shared it with the revenue guys

On May 30, 2013, at 8:08 PM, "Sullivan, Michael J"' <Michael.J.Sullivan@ct.gov> wrote:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes, the
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut,
may enter into separate agreements with the Mash t Pequot Tribe and the
Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut concerning the operation of keno by the State
Lottery Corporation in the State of Connecticut. Any such agreement shall provide that
the State shall distribute to each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve and a half percent
(12.5%) share of the gross operating revenue raised by the State of Connecticut from
keno. For the purposes of this paragraph, gross operating revenues shall be defined to

mean the total sum wagered less amounts paid out as prizes.

Section 2. Amend subsection (b)(4) of Section 12-806 as follows:

(4) To introduce new lottery games, modify existing lottery games, utilize
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

1



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
any interactive on-line lottery games, mcluding on-line video lottery games for
promotional purposes;

Michael Sullivan .
Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860) 418-6298

Fax: {860) 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidentizl, legally privileged, or otherwise exeampt
from disclosure. This information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this
transmission, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents
of this communication is strictly prohibited. if you have received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and
attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or by calling me at {860} 418-6298. Thank you



Sullivan, Michae! J

From: Sullivan, Michael J

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8.24 PM
To: : Barnes, Ben

Subject: ' FW: keno language

Fyi—1also sent to LCO...

Michael Sullivan
Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106
Tel.: (860) 418-6298
Fax: (B60) 418-6487

"E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legally privileged, or ctherwise exempt from disciosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended racipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in refiance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this comraunication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at (860) 418-6298. Thank you

From: Calandre, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:19 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael ]

Subject: Re: keno language -

Got it - shared it with the revenue guys

On May 30, 2013, at 8:08 PM, "Sullivan, Michael " <Michael.).Sullivan@ct.gov> wrote:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes, the
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut,
may enter into separate agreements with the } Pequot Tribe and the
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

Section 2. Amend subsection (b){(4) of Section 12-806 as follows:

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
Department of Consumer Protection, except that the corporation shall not offer -
any interdctive on-line lottery games, including on-line video lottery games for
promotional purposes;

‘Michael Sullivan

Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860) 418-6298

Fax: (860) 418-6487

E-mail: michael.i.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain infermation that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt
from disclosure. This information is intended solely.-for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this
transmission, you are hareby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents
of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and
attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or by caliing me at {860) 418-62%8. Thank you



Sullivan, Michael J

From: Carroll, Anne Brennan [Anne.Brennan.CarroII@cga.E:t.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 9:55 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael J

Subject: : RE: keno language

Thanks.

From: Sullivan, Michael J [mailto:Michael.].Sullivan@ct.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:24 PM

To: Shapiro, Larry; Carroli, Anne Brennan

Cc: Potamianos, Paul; Fiore, Thomas

Subject: FW: keno language '

fyi

Michael Sullivan

Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: {860) 418-6298

Fax: (860} 418-6487

E-mail:- michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legat Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in‘error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and immedlately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at {860) 418-6298. Thank you i

From: Calandro, Alan {maiftc:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:19 PM

To: Sullivan, Michaet J

Subject: Re: keno language

Got it - shared it with the revenue guys

On May 30, 2013, at 8:08 PM, "Sullivan, Michael )" <Michael.).Sullivan@ct.gov> wrote:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6¢ of the general statutes, the
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut,
may enter into separate agreements with the ] >t Pequot Tribe and the
Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut concerning the operation of keno by the State
Lottery Corporation in the State of Connecticut. Any such agreement shall provide that

" the State shall distribute to each tribe a sum not to exceed twelve and a half percent
(12.5%) share of the gross operating revenue raised by the State of Connecticut from
keno. For the purposes of this paragraph, gross operating revenues shall be defined to
mean the total sum wagered less amountis paid out as prizes.

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
promotional purposes; '

‘Michael Sullivan

Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106

Tel.: (860) 418-6298

Fax: (860} 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legalty privileged, or otherwise exempt
from disclosure. This information is interded solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this
fransmission, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action i reliance on the contents
of this communication s strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and
attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or by calling me at {860) 418-6298. Thank you



Suliivan, Michael J

From: Maroney, Patti J.

Sent: Friday, May 31, 2013 3:20 PM

To: Potamianos, Paul; MESSNER, GREGORY:; Suliivan, Michael J
Subiject: FW: KENO

Attachments: Lottery Assessment Language Keno.docx

Potential language to allow for the assessment for Keno regulation is attached.

From: Yeich, Melissa
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2013 3:08 PM

To: Maron

ey, Patti J.

Subject: KENC

Patti,

If the Keno operations are going to be in 'm'ultiple restaurants and bars, then | believe the staffing request the agency has
‘indicated is reasonable. If the bill is drafted that this is a lottery game under the CT Lottery Corp, the DCP expenses
could be part of the lottery assessment. T

assessment in FY 14.

The estimated cost for the staff are as follows:

Position
Count Title Fy 14 FY 15
- | s S
2 Gaming Regulation Officer 97,332 102,199
$ $
0.5 License and Application Analyst | 26,832 28,174
S S
05 Accounts Examiner 28,925 30,371
S S
0.5 Paralegal 24,333 25,550
S s
Total PS 177,422 186,293
S S
Other Expenses 10,000 10,000
s $
Fringe 124,19 130,405
$ $
Total 311,617 326,698

Melissa Yeich

Budget Specialist _
Office of Policy and Management
Phone: 860-418-6372

Fax: 860-418-6490

i

I have drafted language to allow for a supplemental




From: Berner, Gary

Sent: Friday, May 31, 2013 1:06 PM
To: Yeich, Melissa

Subject: issue

Hi Melissa,

As you know, there are published reportsindicating that Keno may be included in this year’s budget. If true, we
understand that there may be many hundreds {perhaps 1,000) of outlets that will become licensed to offer Keno to their
customers. DCP’s gaming Division would assume responsibility for oversight and enforcement of this new legal gaming
activity. '

The Commissioner, Gaming Division Director and | have consider the impact this new responsibility would have upon
DCP, and what our estimated resource needs would be. They include:

2 Gaming Regulation Officers (including customary field expenses).
¥ License and Application Analyst '
¥: Accounts Examiner

% paralegal '

We understand that any assumption that Keno may be legalized is not based on anything official, but did want to bring
this to your attention, fyi.

Thanks.
Piease let me know if you have any follow-up questions or comments.

Gary

Gary W. Berner

Legislative Program Manager

Dept. of Consumer Protection

165 Capitol Ave., Hartford, CT 06106
phone: 860-713-6208

fax: 860-706-1215
Gary.Berner@ct.gov




Sullivan, Michael J

From: Casa, GianCarl

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:09 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael J; Barnes, Ben; Buffkin, Karen
Subject: KENO Changes From Lottery Corp?
Attachments: DRAFT possible Keno changes.docx

From Chelsea Turner [mallto Chelsea Turner@ctlottery org]
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:06 PM

To: Casa, GianCarl

Subject: Draft

Hi Gian-Carl.

Thanks for taking my call. I'm heading to the Capitol and will try to catch up with vou to further discuss the attached.

Also, my cell is: _ in case you need to reach me.

Thanks again for your time and consideration. | greatly appreciate it.
- Chelsea

Chelsea Turner

Directer of Government, Regulotory and Ooemt'ona Affairs
CT Lottery Corporation

777 Brook Streef

Rocky Hill, CT 06087

860-713-2825

CONFIDENTIALITY: This transmittal, including any attachments, is intended for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential information, privileged information (including information protected
by the attorney-client or other privileges), or other non-public information. Any unauthorized review, use,
disclosure, copying or distribution is sirictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you are not the intended
recipient(s), please contact the sender by e-mail or telephone and destroy the original and all copleq of the .
original transmittal. :

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: Under the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act (the “Act™), all e-mail sent to this
e-mail address may be subject to public disclosure to persons other than the addressee. Marking the e-mail
“personal” or “confidential” may not prevent public disclosure under the Act.



Sullivan, Michael J

From: : Potamianos, Paul ,

Sent: © Tuesday, June 04, 2013 5:56 PM
To: ‘Keane, Susan'

Cc: Sullivan, Michael J

Subject: RE. DCP assessment [anguage

Disregard. sorry ' . ‘ I

From: Potamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 5:55 PM
To: 'Keane, Susan’

Cc: Sullivan, Michael J

Subject: DCP assessment language

'REVISED LOTTERY ASSESSMENT LANGUAGE (to assess for the funding required by DCP to
regulate Keno) '

Sec. 12-806b. Assessment of Connecticut Lottery Corporation. Payments to Office of Policy and Management.
Lottery assessment account. (a) Commencing July 1, 2011, and annually thereafter, the Office of Policy and
Management shall assess the Connecticut Lottery Corporation in an amount sufficient to compensate the
Department of Consumer Protection for the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the department for
the regulatory activities specified in subdivision {13} of subsection {b) of section 12-806 for the preceding fiscal
year ending June thirtieth. : : '

(b) For the assessment year ending June 30, 2012, the Office of Policy and Management shall, on or before
August 1, 2012, submit the total of the assessment made in accordance with subsection (a) of this section,
together with a proposed assessment for the succeeding fiscal year based on the preceding fiscal year cost, to
the Connecticut Lottery Corporation. The assessment for the preceding fiscal year shall be determined not
later than September 15, 2011, after receiving any objections to the proposed assessments and making such
changes or adjustments as the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management determines to be warranted.
The corporation shall pay the total assessment in quarterly payments to the Office of Policy and Management,
with the first payment commencing on October 1, 2011, and with the remaining payments to be made on
January 1, 2012, April 1, 2012, and June 1, 2012. The office shall deposit any such payment in the lottery
assessment account established under subsection (d) of this section.

(c) For the assessment year ending June 30, 2013, and each assessment year thereafter, the Office of Policy
and Management shall, on or before May first of each year, submit-the total of the assessment made in
accordance with subsection (a) of this section, together with a proposed assessment for the succeeding fiscal
year hased on the preceding fiscal year cost, to the Connecticut Lottery Corporation. The assessment for the
preceding fiscal year shall be determined not later than June fifteenth of each year, after receiving any
objections to the proposed assessments and making such changes or adjustments as the Secretary of the
Office of Policy and Management determines to be warranted. The corporation shall pay the total assessment
in quarterly payments to the Office of Policy and Management, with the first payment commencing on July
first of each year, and with the remaining payments to be made on October first, January first and April first



annually. The office shall deposit any such-payment in the lottery assessment account established under
“subsection (d) of this section.

(d) There is established an account to be known as the "lottery assessment account” which shail be a separate,
nonlfapsing account within the General Fund. The account shall contain any moneys required by law to be
deposited in the account. Moneys in the account shall be expended by the Department of Consumer
Protection. :

(e) Notwithstanding any provision of this section, the final quarterly payment for the assessment for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2011, shall be paid on July 1, 2011,

(f) Notwithstanding any provision of this section, for the fiscal vear ending June 30, 2014, a supplemental
assessment may be issued to provide funding to the Depariment of Consumer Protection T"o_r the regulatory
costs of Keno. The regulatory costs for Keno will then be included in the regular assessment in _subsequent

fiscal years.




Sullivan, Michael J

From: Petamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:37 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael J; Barnes, Ben; Fiore, Thomas; MESSNER, GREGORY Buffkin, Karen;
Casa, GianCarl

Subject: FW: revenue loss without additional fix

From Ca[andro Aian [rnailto Alan Calandro@cga ct gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:23 PM

" To: Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Wetzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael; Wysock, Robert; Perillo, Christopher
Subject: revenue loss without additional fix

Maureen, Ellen and Paul - The below language change is needed to avoid a revenue loss. Please let Anne or Jo know 1f it
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
operating costs related to keno, as determined by the Connecticut Lottery Corporation each guarter.

From: Calandro, Alan

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:51 PM

To: Murphy, Michael

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

We would need the [anguage change also..

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:50 PM

Te: Calandro, Alan

Cc: Wetze!, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer

Al, can we propose this fix for the implementer?




From: Wetzel, Christopher

- Senk: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 4:20 PM

To: Murphy, Michael _
Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

Here’s a summary- iet me know what you think:

Christopher M. Wetzel
Associate Budget Analyst
Office of Fiscal Analysis
(860) 240-0234 |

From: Murphy, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:37 PM

To: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer

We should recommend the kene fix. Can you write it up and | will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perillo, Christopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

‘They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two documents: 1) LCO 8731 (PDF file); 2} section by section cheat sheet {Word doc).

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the
fiscal impact is IN {or NOT IN) HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chatrs.



Sullivan, Michael J

From: Potamianos, Paul

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 9:51 PM

To: ‘Caiandro, Alan'; Magnan, Maureen; Scalettar, Ellen; Stap, Derek

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan Reberts, Jo; Wetzel, Chnstopher Murphy, Michael; Wysock, Roben
Perillo, Christopher; Barnes Ben;, Buffkln Karen; Sullivan, Michael J; Casa GianCari; Fiore,
Thomas

Subject: : RE: revenue loss without additional fix

OPM is fine with this language.

From: Calandro, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 5:23 PM

To: Magnan, Maureen; Sca1ettar Ellen; Slap, Derek; Potamianos, Paul

Cc: Carroll, Anne Brennan; Roberts, Jo; Wetzel, Christopher; Murphy, Michael; Wysock Robert; Perillo, Christopher
Subject: revenue loss without addltlonai fix ‘

Maureen, Ellen and Paul - The below language change is needed to avoid a revenue loss. Please let Anne or lo know 1f it
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
cent share of the [gross| net operating revenue raised by the state from keno. For the purposes of this section,
"[gross] net operating revenues" means the total sum wagered, less amounts paid out as prizes and the
operating costs related to keno, as determined by the Connecticut Lottery Corporation each quarter.

"From: Calandro, Alan

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:51 PM

To: Murphy, Michael

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: RE: General Government Implementer

We would need the fanguage change also...

From: Murphy, Michael
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 8:50 PM

To: Calandro, Alan

Cc: Wetzel, Christopher

Subject: FW: General Government Implementer



Al, can'we propose this fix for the implementer?

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

We should recommend the keno fix. Can you write it up and I will send to chairs? Thanks.

From: Perilio, Christopher

Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 3:36 PM

To: Office of Fiscal Analysis

Subject: General Government Implementer

- They very real goal is to run the GG implementer before sine die.
Attached are two documents: 1Y LCO 8731 (PDF file); 2) section by section cheat sheet {(Word doc).

Please review this draft of the GG implementer ASAP. Write-up the impact to your agencies. Make sure to note if the
fiscal impactis IN (or NOT IN) HB 6704, the FY 14 and FY 15 budget.

Do not send Rob or me any verbiage just yet. Hold onto it for now. We are still meeting with Chairs.



DIVISION OF SPECIAL REVENUE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TO: Honorable Robert Genuario
Secretary
Office of Policy and Management

FROM: Paul A. Young
Executive Director

DATE: January 6, 2009

RE: Keno

You have asked the Division for an opinion on Keno, specifically, would Keno be a permissible
game in Connecticut, and if so, would that violate the agreements with the Tribes? Of course,
the Division takes no position on whether the game should be offered.

The generally accepted view is that lottery is a game in which participants purchase tickets that
give them an opportunity to win a prize based solely upon random chance. Keno operates in the
above fashion. Our position would be that Keno is permissible under Connecticut Statutes Sec.
12-806, which states in part that the Connecticut Lottery Corporation (CLC) has the power “to
introduce neW lottery games, modify existing lottery games, utilize existing and new
technologies...”.  The Division’s position is that Keno is not substantially different from any
game the CLC currenﬂy offers in which the outcome is determined by the drawing of numbers.

Keno is also a lottery-type game that is currently being played at both Tribal Casinos under
authority of the Mashantucket Pequot Gaming Procedures (the Tribal Gaming Procedures) and
the Mohegan Tribal Compact (the Compact).

By way of history, Keno was never listed as a Las Vegas night table game for charitable
organizations by the Las Vegas night law, which became the basis for the Gaming Procedures
and the Compact. Neither document lists Keno as a table game. They do authorize both Tribes




-

* to conduct lottery type games, and Keno conforms to the definition of “lottery” in both

documents. It appears that the only way both Tribes can operate Keno i1s as a lottery game. The
Division, with the support of the Attorney General, had a dispute with the Mashantucket Peguot
Tribe in 2004 on how the Tribe operated a subset of its Keno game, which was called PlayAway.
All correspondence between the Tribe, the Attorney General, and the Division referred to
PlayAway as “Keno, a lottery type game.” The Division also has a letter from a previous
Chairman of the Mashantucket Gaming Commission acknowledging that Keno is a lotiery type
game.

While we feel that Keno is a lottery type game in Connecticut, it is less clear in other
jurisdictions. The suwrrounding states of New York, Massachusetts and Rhode Island -operate
Keno under the authority of their Lottery operations. There are, however, several states that
operate Keno as a casino table game. The National Indian Gaming Cornmission (NIGC) refers
to Keno in its regulations, dated April 9, 1992, as an example of a casino game. However, our

position is that Connecticut’s law, and our Tribal Gaming Procedures (promulgated on May 31, .

1991) and Compact are the deciding factors, and Keno, in Connecticut, is a Lottery type game
and permissible under existing law. '

If the CLC were to choose to move forward with Keno, the Division would review its procedures
as we would any new lottery game. If you would like to discuss the matter further please feel
free to contact me.

PAY:sja




MEMORANDUM

TO: Thomas J. Fiare, Office of Policy and Management ' . ‘
FROM: Anmne Noble, President & 'CEO, Connecticut Lottery Corporétion
DATE: December 30, 2011

RE; Request for Data Re New Gém_ing initiative at the Connecticut Lottery Corporation

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL
NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION OR DUPLICATION

Pursuant to your request, | enclose proprietery financial data relating to the implementation and
operation of Keno over a three year period. This information represents the Lottery’s best estimate at
this time and the astimates may change &s the program and marketplace evolive,

Piease note the foliowing tritical factors:
»  Keno enjoys success in many states, including New York, Rhode isiand and Massachusetts.

e . Weekly per capita ("WPC”) in Connecticut will be dependent on a myriad of factors including,
but not limited to, the number of operational retailers, market conditions, competition, and
game design. The licensing of retailers, which Is done by the Department of Consumer
Protection {"DCP”), must be smooth, effective and efficient if retailer recruitment is to reach
satisfactory levels 1o achieve noted per capitas. The number of operational retailers plays a
major role in the success of Keno,

e Online system costs are subject to completing contract negotiations. Capital expenditures will
fiuctuzte with the number of retailers and the timing of capital payments is subject to change
and coniract negotiations.

+  Marketing, advertising and promotional costs are critical to the game's success and wiil vary
depending upon the business circumstances of the launch of Keno.

e  WPC projections at this time do not include increases in the sales of other garnes, such as the
instant portfolio, due to a broader distribution network. A reasonable expectation is that
additional returns to the General Fund from other lottery games will be realized as the result of
the introduction of Keno. :

¢ Increases in payment to the Chronic Gambling Rehabilitation Fund are not included in this
forecast.

v Qur estimate of DCP's cost Is ;ust that, an estimate. DCP will have to provide data on thesr
anticipated regulatory expenditures.



Memorandum to Thomas 1, Flore
December 30, 2011 :
Page 2 of 2

Keno represents & source of substantial growth for the Connecticut Lottéry, in part because the game
expands the Lottery’s existing distribution network. Keno can also be sold over the internet.

In addition to sales forecasts, | have also attached metrics which detalt WPC from other lotteries during
the first full year of sales as well as In fiscal year “11. Our neighboring staies, while very different
marketplaces, enjoy a healthy per capita. on Kene, and the Lottery believes that, upon full
implementation, Keno represents a source of significant revenue.  With the advent of casinos in
Massachusetts and possibly, internet gaming in our surrounding states, most notably New York,
cannibalization of Connecticut’s gaming revenues is real. Keno may be necessary, in part, to simply
maintain General Fund transfers from gaming revenue. '

Please call me if | can further assist you or answer additional questions.

Enclosure
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Keno First Year Sales (milions)

Vartous Rankings

30,97

7.33

057 |

Aug-08

2008

1.30

11,52

Connecticut Year 1 Moderate Projection Matrics

‘Average |

| & 22371

S 103.94 | §

0.41

First Year Sales from LaFlevrs
Note: used US Cencus Bureav data “intercensal Esfimates®

D/ wrwWW.CensSUs.ZOV
e/ /W w.censys.aoy

st/archlves/2000s /vintege 2001/CO-EST2001- 127

estfintercensal/state/ST-ESTOMNT-02 himi

FY11 KENO Data {ranked on WPC Sales)

Various Rankings

437

2,407

'$ 0.67

6,378 |8

353

5 Moderate Projection Rankings

"Totals vijo CT] 11624 | & LB28.00[5

047 ]

25,1755

1,250 |

2,756

{1} All retatiers sell Keno but ot alt have s Keno moritor.
12} NY Retaliers from £Y10, K5 Retallers are estimated,
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
Keno in Cther States

5/8/2013
Unclaimed Prize.  Cost of Sites/
Sales Commissions Prize Awards Recovery Sales Gross Profit % Profit Population Profit/Capita # Sites Capita Frequency Latest News

Rhode Island” $ 52251847 $ 10,687,440 § 53,676,191 § (308,706) $64,825315 § 17,426,532 21.2% 1.1 $ 16,596,897 600+ 571 Every 4 minutes FY 2012 Annual Report
Massachuseits 790,459,000 39,522,950 163,827,000 207% 6.6 24,650,466 1,725 260  Every 4 minutes FY 2012 Annual Report
Maryland 414,400,000 143,460,693 34.6% 5.8 24,734,602 -

New York® 502,039 368 30,122 000 318.664.000 - 4,853,000 148,400,388 28.6% 186 7.583.085 3,000 153 Every 4 minufes FY 2012 Annual Report
Average 447 287,559 26.5% $ 18,391,205

*From the state's lottery financial annual report
Note: MA rough estimate that keno is 16.7% of GF transfer- as itis 16.7% of sales

Cstimate Based Cn:

Naw York Rhede Island © Massachusetts Maryland REMANY,MD
CT Population 35 35 35 3.5 35
Avgl ProfitfCapita 7.683,0565 16,596 697 24 650,466 24,734,602 18,381,205

Est. Revenue-CT  § 26,540,693 $ 58,088,440 § 86,276,633 § 86,571,108

Ancther way fo look at it:

FY 2008
Per Capita

Weekly Ssleg™ CTEst Sales  Erofit-26%
Rhode Island 1.36 247,520,000 61,880,000
Massachusetts 2.19 398,580,000 68,645,000
New York 0.44 £0,080,000 20,020,000
Maryland 133 242,060,000 £0,515.000
Average 1.33 242,060,000 (2B E5 00

*Source: NASPL 2008 Lottery Resource Handbook

NAREVUNIMTAXES\KRISTINWS pacialREvenueiKeno_otherstates




Per Capita Per Capita
State EY 2011 Sales 1stYear Sales{Reall* FY20%1Sales LT Forecasted First Year Sales
Massachusetts $299,500,000 $437,603,525 789,000,000 573 5120 4260,685,578
Mew Yark $561,100,000 $776,027,422  $424,200,000 442 $22 $149,919,321
Rhode Island $2E,390,000 542,663,108 581,100,000 543 577 $152,489,497
8§52 873 £187,698,132

Average:

*In 2011 Dallars

CPi Inflator
Q.48
0.72
0.67

6,006,000
18,520,000
1,001,000

6,550,000
18,380,000
1,050,008

3,577,845



Fiore, Thomas

From: Wirtanen, Kristin

Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2013 10:00 AM

To: Barnes, Ben

Cc: ~ Buffkin, Karen; Casa, GianCarl; Fiore, Thomas
Subject: Keno

Ben,

FYI- under previous administrations we have proposed to implement Keno with and without legislation.

Per CGS 12-806(b){4), one of the Connecticut Lottery Corporation’s powers is: “to introduce new lottery games, modify
existing lottery games....”.

In 2009 we proposed to implement Keno without legislation under the theory that it is a “new lottery game” {was a
potential item to securitize at the time).

in 2010 we proposed to implement Keno with legislation under the 12-806(b){4) that clearly clarified the CLC's authority
to implement Keno:

“To introduce new lottery games, including keno, modifying lottery games...” (Raised Bill 484-AAC the Governor’s
Revenue Plan-February 2010 Session, section 5). :




Fiore, Thomas

From: Barnes, Ben

Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2013 11:03 AM
To: Fiore, Thomas '
Subject; FW: Keno Opinion

Attachments: kenoopinion (3).pdf

From: Clark, Robert

Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2013 9:05 AM

To: Sullivan, Michael 3

Cc: Barnes, Ben; Buffkin, Karen; Bronin, Luke; Drake, Christopher
Subject: FW: Keno Opinion

FYl. Here is our 2009 informal opinion on Keno.

From: Deichert, Robert J.

Sent: Wednesday, November 09, 2011 8:55 AM
To: Clark, Robert

Cc: Dannehy, Nora R

Subject: Keno Opinion

Bob,

Per your request, attached is our keno letter from 2009, which Sue Cobb and | worked on. | will look into the Internet
poker question and get back to you as soon as possible.

Rob




RICHARD BLUMENTHAL
ATTORNEY GENERAL

55 Fhn Street
P.(. Box 120
Hartford, CT 06141-0120

Office of The Attorney General
State of Connecticut

June 1, 200¢%

The Honorable Stephen D. Dargan, Co-chair
Public Safety and Security Committee
Legislative Office Building '
Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1591

Dear Representative Dargan:

You have requested a lepal opinion regarding a provision in the
Governor’s revised budget legalizing the game of Keno. In particular, you ask
whether (1) Keno is a lottery game; and (2) legalizing Keno would impact the
State’s compact and memoranda of understanding (MOUs) with the Mohegan and
Mashantucket Pequot Tribes. :

As you know, pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 3-125, the Attorney General
can provide legal opinions to legislators only if requested by the Senate President
Pro Tempore, Speaker of the House of Representatives or the majority or minority
teaders of the. Semate or the House.- [ offer the following information and
comments, which hopefully will be useful to you in considering the Governor’s
proposal.

At this point, there is no definitive answer to the questions you raise.
Courts are divided on the issue of whether Keno is a lottery game and the answer
may well depend on specific factual details -- not yet available -- as to the specific
type and structure of Keno gaming contemplated by the Governor’s budget. One
critical point seems certain: a possible violation of the Tribal/State slot machine
agreements could put at risk more than $400 million in state revenues. Therefore,
after the details are determined as to the Keno game proposal, the most prudent
~ and responsible course, fiscally and fepally, would seem to be an amendment to
the Mohegan and Mashantucket Pequot sloi machine agreements (MOUs). An
amendment negotiated with the tribal nations would explicitly authorize the State
to operate Keno games, once approved by the legislature pursuant to Conn, Gen.
Stat. §3-6¢.

Keno gaming has been discussed informally among legislators for several
weeks and was recently included in the Governot’s revisions to her February
proposed budget, through a press release and her accompanying list of budget




The Honorable Stephen Dargan, Co-chair
Public Safety and Security Committec
June 1, 2009

Page 2

revisions. The press release simply states “Introduction of Keno” as a proposed
revision. The accompanying document contains only the line item
“Implementation of Keno in the state” with estimated revenue of $20 million for
fiscal year 2009-2010 and $60 million for fiscal year 2010-2011. Completely
lacking is any explanation of the operation or structure of such Keno gaming and
who would manage it -- two elements essential to a legal analysis and answers to
your important questions.

As to your first question -- whether Keno is a lottery game -- our state
Supreme Court has never directly addressed this issue. The reievant statute,
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 12-801(3), does not resolve it. The Connecticut Supreme
Court has “held that a lottery is characterized by three counstituent elements,
namely, a prize, a chance, and a price.” Farina v. Kelly, 147 Conn. 444, 449
(Conn. 1960). That definition could arguably encompass Keno, and several
courts outside of Connecticut have found that Keno is a lottery game. See, e.g.,
Boasberg v. United States, 60 F.2d 185, 186 (5th Cir. 1932); Harris v. Missouri
Gaming Comm'n, 8§69 S.W.2d 58, 64 (Mo, 1994); Knight v. Stafe, 574 So. 2d 662,
664 (Miss. 1990); A.B. Long Music Co. v. Commomvealith, 429 SW.2d 391, 394
(Ky. 1968).

Other state courts have held that Keno is not a lottery game. See, e.g., W.
Telcon v. Cal. State Lottery, 917 P24 761 (Cal. 1996); Esiava v. State, 44 Ala.
406, 409 (Ala. 1870). The rulings show that the conclusion as to whether a
particular Keno game is a lottery game depends on its specific structure and
operation, because the term “Keno” can apply to a variety of different games, not
all within the definition of lottery. See, e.g., W. Telecon, 917 P.2d at 659 (noting
that “decisions from other jurisdictions have held ‘keno’ to be a form of lottery, or
stated so in dictim, but” concluding that “the game referred to is found to be
materially different from [the] keno™ at issue in that case); see also Shakopee
Mdewakanton Sioux Community v. Hope, 798 F. Supp. 1399, 1409 (D. Minn.
1992) (noting the evolution of two distinct forms of Keno, one derived from bingo
and the other derived from a lottery game).

In short, in this situation, there is no clarity in the statute, no ruling from
our state courts, no unanintty in other state courts, and most important, no
refevant specific facts as to the operation and structure of the proposed game or
even what type is proposed. Concluding whether the proposed Keno is a lottery
game would be more a guess than a legal analysis. :
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Because rulings are divided and details are lacking, and there are different
types of Keno games, we cannot predict what courts would conclude about the
type of Keno contemplated in the Governor’s budget revisions.

Your second question -- whether legalizing Keno will affect the State’s
agreements with the Mashantucket Pequot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe --
likewise presents unsettled issues, directly implicating key agreements with the
Mashantucket Pequot and Mohegan Tribes. The MOUs authorize the operation of
video facsimile games, particularly slot machines, at the tribal casinos m Ledyard
and Uncasville, as long as the Tribes pay the State 25 percent of the gross
operating revenues from video facsimile machines. 1993 Conn. Op. Alty. Gen.
Letter to Rep. Ritter and Rep Krawiecki {(February 11, 1993); 1994 Conn. Op.
Atty. Gen, Letter to Sen. Larson, et. al, (May 18, 1994). Last year, these
payments totaled over $411 million. These payments continue “so long as no
change in State law is enacted to permit the operation of video facsimiles or other
commercial casino games by any other person and no other person within the
State lawfully operates video facsimiles or other commercial casino gaines.”

" Mashantucket Pequot Second Amendment fo MOU dated April 25, 1994, pp. 1-2;

Mohegan MOU of May 17, 1994, p. 2 (language slightly different but same
meaning).

While a strong argument could be made that the state should not be
regarded as “any other person,” there is no judicial decision or other authority
interpreting Connecticut’s MOUs to support this position or authoritatively
resolve this guestion. Some courts have found the phrase ambiguous in other
contexts. See, e.g. Fid & Deposit Co. v. FitzGerald Contrs., Inc. {In ve Whitaker
Constr. Co.), 439 F.3d 212,224 (5" Cir. 2006) (analyzing state bankruptey statute
and holding that “ambiguity remains as to the identity of section 9:4822(C)’s
‘other person™): see also Conn. Gen. Stat. § 36a-2(48) (defining “Person” to
include the State). Under Connecticut law, contract interpretation focuses on
determining the intent of the parties, which “is determined from the language used
interpreted in the light of the situation of the parties and the circumstances
connected with the transaction.” Conn Light & Power Co. v. Lighthouse
Landings, Inc., 279 Conn. 90, 108 {20006) (quotation marks omitted).

Looking to the intent of the parties when the MOUs were negotiated and
enacted, a court might conclude that the parties never contemplated the State
operating casino games, including Keno, within the State while receiving 25
percent of slot machine revenue from the Tribal casinos.
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Similarly, the State could contend that Keno is not a “commercial casino
game,” but a court might disagree because clearly some types of Keno are
prevalent in casinos, including the tribal casinos i Connecticut. Courts have
been sympathetic to tribal efforts to protect their rights under the Indian Gaming
Regulation Act and other federal statutes. See, eg, Mashantucket Pequot Tribe v.
Connecticut, 913 F.24 1024 (2™ Cir: 1990).  Again, specific facts as to the type
of Keno -- its structure, operation and management -- might be relevant and
significant. '

Only after the type of Keno is determined could we assess whether it
constitutes a change in state law that permits the operation of commercial casino
games by any other person, abrogating the MOU’s and eliminating tribal
obligations to pay the state a 25 percent share of slot revenue,' No state or federal
court -- inn Connecticut or elsewhere -- has clearly addressed this issue. We
canttot predict how a Connecticut court would decide it, particularly without
details about the proposed Keno gamc‘a.2

If the legislature wishes to pursue the Keno proposal, a prudent and
reasonable course would be an amendment to the MOUs to clarify. its legal
impact. Structuring the operation and types of Keno games -- and other details --
might well affect the practical as well as legal conclusion. The legislature no
doubt would wish some assurance that legalizing Keno would neither undermine
agreements nor relieve the Tribes of obligations under the MOUs to make
contributions to the State. Such an approach would avoid the risk of potentiaily

' In our view, even if the Keno proposal is enacted by the legislature and the Tribes believe that it
changes state law 1o violate the MOUs, the Tribes cannot unilaterally cease making their
conltributions under the MCUs but ave required to seek a court determination as to whether the
State’s actions in fact violates the MOUs, Unilateral withholding of payments would violate the
gaming procedures (Mashantucket Pequot Tribe) and the Gaming Compact (Mohegan Tribe). The
issues would be litigated in federal district court, which might order that the funds be held in '
escrow pending the outcome, depriving the state of the use of the money during the course of
litigation -- which could take years.

* Only one case, decided by a trial court in Michigan, has concluded that allowing Keno by the
State of Michigan would not relieve tribes of their obligations to make payments to the State under
an MOU. State of Michigan v. Liitle River Band of Ottawa fndians, 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31213
(W.I3. Mich, 2007). This decision is not binding on the Connecticut courts. Whether it would be
persuasive {0 a court in Connecticut would depend on a number of factors, including Michigan’s
gaming laws, gaming compaci provisions, and the overall circumstances under-which the MOUs
were negotiated there,
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losing more than $400 million a year from the Tribes’ contributions to gain $20 to
$60 million in estimated revenues from legalizing Keno.

1 would be pleased to address any additional questions, or respond to a
formal opinion request at an appropriate time.

Very truly yours,

Y vy

RICHARD BLUMENTHAL
ATTORNEY GENERAL




Fiore, Thomas

From: ~ Sullivan, Michaet J

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:09 PM

To: '‘Calandro, Alan'

Cc: Barnes, Ben; Potamianos, Paul; Fiore, Thomas; MESSNER, GREGORY; Buffkin, Karen
Subject: keno fanguage

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6c of the general statutes, the Secretary of the
Office of Policy and M on behalf of the State of Connecticut, may enter into separate
agreements with the | t Pequot Tribe and the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut
concerning the operation of keno by the State Lottery Corporation in the State of Connecticut. Any
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

(4) To introduce new lottery games, modify existing lottery games, utilize existing and new
technologies, determine distribution channels for the sale of lottery tickets, INTRODUCE
KENO PURSUANT TO SIGNED AGREEMENTS WITH THE MASHANTUCKET PEQUOT
TRIBE AND THE MOHEGAN TRIBE OF INDIANS OF CONNECTICUT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 1 OF THIS ACT and, to the extent specifically authorized by regulations
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
video lottery games for promotional purposes;

Michael Sullivan
Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th floor
Hartford, CT 06106
Tel.: (860} 418-6298

- Fax: (860) 418-6487
E-mail: michael.i.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Notice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. H you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and |mmed|ate|y notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at (860) 418-6298. Thank you



Fiore, Thomas

From: Sullivan, Michael J

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:24 PM

To: 'Shapiro, Larry'; 'Carroll, Anne Brennan'
Cc: Potamianos, Paul; Ficre, Thomas
Subject: FW: keno language

fyi

Michael Sullivan
‘Undersecretary for Legal Affairs
Office of Policy and Management
450 Capitol Avenue, 5th ficor
Hartford, €T 06106

Tel.: {860) 418-6298

Fax: {860) 418-6487

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ct.gov

Legal Motice: This electronic message communication may contain information that is confidential, fegally privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure. This
information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named above. If you are not the intended recipient of this transmission, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this communication is strictly prohibited. If vou have
received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or
by calling me at (860} 418-62598, Thank you

From: Calandro, Alan [mailto:Alan.Calandro@cga.ct.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2013 8:15 PM

To: Sullivan, Michael J

Subject: Re: keno language

Got it - shared it with the revenue guys

On May 30, 2013, at 8:08 PM, "Sullivan, Michael I" <Michael J.Sullivan@ct.gov> wrote:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3-6c of the general statutes, the
Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management, on behalf of the State of Connecticut,
may enter into separate agreements with the 2 - Pequot Tribe and the
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

(4) To introduce new lottery. games, modify existing lottery games, utilize
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

E-mail: michael.j.sullivan@ci.gov

Legat Notice: This electronic message communication may centain infermation that is confidential, legally privileged, or otherwise exempt
from disclosure. This information is intended solely for the entity or the individual named ahove. If you are not the intended recipient of this
transmission, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or taking of any action in reliance on the contents
of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy all copies of this message and
attachments and immediately notify me by sending a reply e-mail to the sender or by calling me at (860) 418-6298. Thank you




Fiore, Thomas

From: Wirtanen, Kristin

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2013 3:09 PM
To: Buffkin, Karen

Cc: Fiore, Thomas; Tassinari, Brian
Subject: RE: Keno

Karen,

Estimated Keno Revenue

FY 2014
State: $3.8 million
Tribes: $1.2 million

FY 2015
State: $19.9-million
Tribes: $6.5 million

We are awaiting to hear back from Chelsea Turner at CLC to see if they have a preliminary plan for Keno- including projected
timeline/specific locations.

The estimate in the first year is significantly lower due to the time it will take CLC to develop the game design, complete
licensing and regulatory approvals.

~~~~~ Original Message-----

From: Fiore, Thomas

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2813 9:07 AM
To: Wirtanen, Kristin

Cc: Tassinari, Brian

Subject: FW: Keno

————— Original Message-----

From: Buffkin, Karen

Sent: Friday, June 87, 2013 9:26 AM
To: Fiore, Thomas; Maroney, Patti 3J.
Subject: Keno

Tom & Patti,

Can you give me a breakdown of the Keno revenue for 14 and 15 - state v. Tribes. Also what
are the projections based on in terms of the timing of the roll-out and am I correct that
Keno will be offered in bars and clubs (like VFW) - anywhere else?






